
JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Gibson Room 212 

March 26th, 2021 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 9:00 AM                                                            

 

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS: Police Commission members present: John Hackwith, and 

Tim Shanks.  Also present were Lt. Doug Mahlum.  Commissioner Morgan Kasuske was not present 

 

 PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. APPROVE DECEMBER 23RD, 2021 MEETING MINUTES.  

Commissioner Shanks moved, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith to accept the minutes from 

the September 1st, 2020 meeting.   

 

Motion carried 2-0 

 NEW BUSINESS 

1. POLICE COMMISSION’S EXAMINATION OF APPLICANTS:  ALEX VANCE, 

MICHAEL NELSON, AND BRADLEY TREIBER FOR THE POLICE FORCE – GREAT 

FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

 

Lt. Mahlum stated that the applications of Alex Vance, Michael Nelson, and Bradley Treiber, have 

been referred to the Police Commission.  Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann.  §7-32-4154, this meeting 

is an examination of the applicants as to their age, legal, mental, moral, and physical qualifications 

and their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.   

 

Lt. Mahlum read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-4151, that sets forth the role of the 

Police Commission; reviewed each item provided to the Commission members in their meeting 

packets; and, read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-303, qualifications of law 

enforcement officers.  He explained that this meeting is for the Police Commission to review the 

documentation, conduct the examination of each applicant, and make a determination as to whether 

each applicant meets the qualifications of a law enforcement officer.     

 

He read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 2-3-203(3).  He asked each applicant’s position with 

regard to right to privacy.  Both applicants asserted their right to privacy. 

 

Lt. Mahlum noted that there is substantial value in having the examination confidential to have a 

frank and open discussion with the applicants and to gain an accurate view of qualifications to 

determine their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.  Lt. Mahlum determined 

that each applicant’s individual privacy clearly exceeded the merits of public disclosure, and closed 

the meeting for the Commission to conduct each applicant’s examination in executive session. 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Gibson Room 212 

March 26th, 2021 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 2 of 6 

 

At 9:07 AM the members of the Commission and Lt. Mahlum, met in executive session in the 

Gibson Room for the purpose of the Commission conducting the examination of each applicant 

individually, starting with Applicant Alex Vance. 

 

-  -EXECUTIVE SESSION - - 

 

Applicant Alex Vance 

Applicant Alex Vance’s Executive Session began at 9:07 AM.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith began the session by introducing himself and Commissioner Shanks.  

Commissioner Hackwith asked Vance about having volunteered at the Cascade County Sheriff’s 

Office and his time with Blaize Warehouse.   

 

Applicant Vance confirmed he had been an intern with the Cascade County Sheriff’s Office and 

enjoyed his time there.  He also discussed how he was a warehouse loader at Blaize.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Vance about his duties as a mechanic.  Applicant Vance explained 

that he has been a mechanic for quite a while, helping his father’s business.  He stated he typically 

works on non-commercial vehicles, personal vehicles, and fleet vehicles.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Vance if he was outdoorsy and Applicant Vance explained he 

enjoyed riding jet skis and spends a lot of his spare time in the outdoors.  Commissioner Hackwith 

stated he had talked with GFPD Volunteer Coordinator, Adrienne Ehrke and stated, “She had 

nothing but good to say about you.”  Applicant Vance thanked him and stated he had been a GFPD 

Volunteer for quite some time.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked if Applicant Vance had read, the Oath of Office and Vance stated 

he had.  Commissioner Hackwith stated he wanted to make the point that the Oath is about 

upholding the constitution.  Applicant Vance agreed with him.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Applicant Vance to give his opinion on holding a position of public 

trust.  Applicant Vance responded that it means to serve the public, being answerable to them, and 

the community is there to hold him responsible.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated the purpose of the Police Commission and that they were the only 

people that cannot be fired by the GFPD.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Applicant Vance what Jim Phelps, previous employer, would say 

about him and Vance responded saying he would give him good reviews.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Vance what made him want to become a cop.  Vance responded with 

he once witnessed a car crash and the police officers response to the event solidified with him that 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Gibson Room 212 

March 26th, 2021 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 

policing was what he wanted to do as a career.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Vance if he had ever been in a fight and what he wanted to do in his 

career.  Vance responded he had not but was not fearful of being in a fight and would use whatever 

skills he would be provided with.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Vance what he saw himself doing in 5-years.  Vance responded that 

he would like to be an instructor involved with teaching or training.  Commissioner Shanks 

followed up with asking if he had aspirations to becoming a supervisor.  Vance responded that he 

would want to but down the road.  Vance also explained he wanted to obtain his Master’s Degree 

as well.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Vance if he could see himself doing more than 20 years with the 

GFPD and Vance responded, Yes.  Vance went on to say he looks forward to the opportunity to 

teach driving and shooting down as he progresses.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Vance how he would handle dealing with a family member that he 

caught speeding.  Vance explained he would utilize his discretion for minor infractions, but for 

anything serious, he would most certainly call for assistance or a supervisor for anything serious.  

Commissioner Shanks furthered this and asked how Vance would treat a friend.  Vance explained 

it would depend on the violation, but would utilize his discretion appropriately within policy and 

guidelines.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Vance how he would handle a situation where a Field Training 

Officer or Supervisor was doing something wrong.  Vance stated he would immediately address 

the issue and require the individual report the behavior to a supervisor and would follow up to 

make sure it was taken care of.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith concluded the hearing with identifying the importance of testing and 

promotion within the ranks of the GFPD.  

 

Applicant Alex Vance’s Executive Session concluded at 9:31 AM.  

 

Applicant Michael Nelson 

Applicant Michael Nelson’s Executive Session began at 9:32 AM. 

 

Commissioner Hackwith initiated the session with asking applicant Nelson if he preferred Mike or 

Michael.  Applicant Nelson stated he preferred Michael.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated it was critically important to be able to communicate in the law 

enforcement profession.  He asked if Nelson’s previous shoulder injury was going to give him any 

problems.  Nelson stated he is all healed up and good to go.   



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Gibson Room 212 

March 26th, 2021 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Nelson what happened to a mailbox that Nelson had disclosed 

being damaged while he was working in a previous job. Nelson stated as he was working a garbage 

truck, he was too close to the mailbox and when he grabbed the garbage with the truck, he grabbed 

the mailbox, damaging it.   

 

Commissioner Shanks brought up the importance of notifying a supervisor when something such 

as the mailbox damage happened.  Nelson stated he understood this.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith stressed the importance of individual integrity and then stated Nelson 

would be taking an Oath of Office and that the Oath was to the Constitution.  He directed Nelson 

to never allow things that are un-constitutional.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Nelson what it meant to him to hold a position of public trust.  

Nelson stated it means a lot to him and he would always keep himself to be as a positive example 

for others to follow.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Nelson why he chose Montana over Minnesota.  Nelson stated he is 

very much an avid outdoorsman and is into snowboarding.  He has an uncle that lives here in Great 

Falls who is also a Police Officer and he enjoys their relationship and could not have this 

relationship if he did not live here. Nelson stated he was very excited to be in Montana, specifically 

Great Falls.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Nelson what he would do if he were on a call with his uncle and he 

witnesses his uncle do something wrong, what would he do.  Nelson stated he would confront his 

uncle about the issue and report it to a supervisor, as there is no room for poor behavior.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Nelson what he sees himself doing in 5-years.  Nelson responded that 

he would hope to be a member of the SWAT team and possible a Detective in a specialty position.  

He would like to move through the ranks to become a supervisor in 10-12 years and can definitely 

see himself here more than 20 years.   

 

Commissioner Shanks explained to Nelson that while at the Academy there are high expectations 

of him to perform and represent the GFPD well.  Nelson stated he understood this and expected 

himself to perform well.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Nelson If he had ever been in a fight and Nelson stated he had not but 

hoped he would be able to hold his own.  Commissioner Shanks concluded with telling Nelson to 

shoot for awards while at the Academy.   

 

Applicant Michael Nelson’s Executive Session concluded at 9:57 AM 

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Gibson Room 212 

March 26th, 2021 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Applicant Bradley Treiber 

Applicant Bradley Treiber’s Executive Session began at 9:59 AM.  

Commissioner Hackwith started the session by stating Treiber was only 20 years old and asked 

him how his age would play into him being a police officer.  Treiber stated he’s been living on his 

own for a while now and was raised by parents who worked hard to get where they were and he 

fully expects himself to work hard on his own and hold himself accountable.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Treiber if he was from Mandan, ND.  Treiber stated he was, but 

also had family in Mandan, ND, Roundup, MT, and Lavina, MT.  He stated his uncle is a Warden 

with Montana Fish Wildlife and Parks out of Harlowtown, MT as well.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Treiber why law enforcement was appealing to him.  Treiber stated 

he has helped save people as a lifeguard and has worked in a bank helping people.  He stated he 

really wants to be in a community and in a position where he can help people.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Treiber about being interested in the Montana Highway Patrol and 

Treiber stated he initially had interest but was committed to the GFPD.  Commissioner Hackwith 

described how the GFPD and MHP are significantly different agencies and have different 

responsibilities.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Treiber about a mistake he had listed while with the bank he was 

working with.  Treiber stated a customer had withdrawn $10,000.00, which was a mistake and he 

had to correct the mistake.  Treiber stated he had to address the issue himself to make the customer 

whole. Commissioner Hackwith stated his reactions to mistakes were important.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated Treiber would be taking and Oath of Office an Oath to the 

Constitution.  He then asked if Treiber was un-willing to take an order that was not constitutional.  

Treiber stated he would not violate the Constitution.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Treiber what it meant to him to hold a position of public trust.  

Treiber stated it meant to him that he needed to be the example for those in the community to 

follow.  

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Treiber about his applications with Livingston and Belgrade Police 

Department.  Treiber stated Livingston had reached out to him, but he has made his choice to stay 

with Great Falls PD as he really enjoys the community.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked if Treiber had ever been in a fight and Trieber stated he had not, but 

felt he would be capable in handling himself and dealing with adversities.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked if Treiber’s family had pushed him towards law enforcement.  Treiber 

stated they had not pushed him towards it, but have been supportive to him in whatever he wished 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Gibson Room 212 

March 26th, 2021 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 6 of 6 

 

to do.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked what Treiber saw himself doing in the next 5-10 years.  Treiber stated 

he would be attempting to obtain his Bachelor’s Degree and pursuing a Master’s Degree.  Treiber 

stated he hoped to take on a position as a leader, but would want to gain the necessary experience 

first.   

 

Commissioner Shanks concluded the session with telling Treiber to take care of himself and while 

at the Academy, he was to represent his agency well.     

 

Applicant Bradley Treiber’s Executive Session concluded at 10:16 AM.  

 

The meeting reconvened into an open meeting in the Gibson Room.  Lt. Mahlum called the meeting 

back to order at 10:20 AM. 

 

Lt. Mahlum summarized the Commission’s examination of applicants for the police force; that the 

Commission reviewed the backgrounds of each applicant; and, that Alex Vance, Michael Nelson, 

and Bradley Treiber meet the age, legal, mental, moral and physical qualifications and that they 

are eligible to be members of the Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Commissioner Shanks moved, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith, that the Police 

Commission approve of applicants Alex Vance, Michael Nelson, and Bradley Treiber for 

hiring consideration as members of the Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Lt. Mahlum asked if there was any public comment.  Hearing none, Lt. Mahlum asked if there was 

any further discussion amongst the Commissioners.   

 

There being no further discussion, Lt. Mahlum called for the vote. 

 

Motion carried 2-0. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Hackwith 

moved, seconded by Commissioner Shanks, to adjourn the meeting of March 26th, 2021 at 

10:30 AM 

 

Motion carried 2-0.  

_________________________________ 

                                             Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 

 

Minutes Approved: _______________, 2020 

 

 *Minutes approved 8/24/2021 Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 

 


